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Changes to the Bid: 

 

1.  The deadline has been changed from 10:00 a.m. January 20, 2015 to 10 a.m., January 21, 2015.  
Please submit the proposals (one original and three copies) to the Contract Compliance Office at 

1801 Harrison Street, First Floor, Oakland, CA  94612 by 10 a.m. Wednesday, January 21, 2015. 
 
 

Responses to Questions: 

 

The following questions were submitted by the deadline and are answered in this addendum. 

 

General: 

 

Question 1:  What are the reference surveys for? 
Answer:  The reference surveys, which are required, will be used by the Authority’s evaluation 

committee members to substantiate the services that the proposer has or had provided to current and/or 
past customers.  Proposers must submit at least three completed surveys with their proposals.  Refer to 

Section 4.2 D – Reference Survey in the proposal. 

 
Question 2:  Is the Authority satisfied with its current provider? 

Answer:  Yes. 
 
Question 3: In the proposal, the work hours are from 5 p.m. - 9 p.m. If the work required more time 
beyond this time period, will the Authority allot more time to clean the property? 

Answer:   The Authority will work with the selected vendor to determine proposed schedule alterations. 

 
Question 4:  If meetings are held in the evening between 5 p.m. – 9 p.m., how can the janitorial staff 

clean the premises without interruption? 
Answer:   Most meetings end by 7 p.m., so there is time for the janitorial staff to clean the building. 
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Question 5: Must periodic services (such as monthly, quarterly, semi-annual, etc.), be performed in the 

5 p.m. – 9 p.m. time frame, or arranged at a different time, which may include additional time? 
Answer:  The Authority will work with the selected vendor to determine proposed schedule alterations. 

 
Question 6: For as needed services, may the contractor bill extra to send someone to perform these 

services? 

Answer: Yes. 
 

Question 7: Is shampooing the carpet a new task added to the scope of services compared to previous 
Authority bids? 

Answer:  No. 
 

Question 8: Can you provide an estimate on the number of employees and visitors in each building 

during the weekday? 
Answer:  No. 

 
Question 9:  What is the number of restrooms for each location? 

Answer:    

 935 Union Street (6)   

 1327 65th Avenue (5) 

 1619 Harrison Street (4)   

 1805 Harrison Street (8) 

 1801 Harrison Street (4) 

 1180 25th Avenue (4). 

 
Question 10:  What was the previous contract amount awarded for? 

Answer:  Not available at this time.  
 

 

Site Specific: 

 

1619 HARRISON STREET 
 
Question 11:  1619 Harrison Street has more than two floors.  At 1619 Harrison Street, are we to care 

for only the first and second floors? 

Answer:  Yes, janitorial services are needed for the first and second floors only. 
 

Question 12:  Other buildings were cited in Section 2.9 – Site Specific Requirements to keep the parking 
lot free of trash, but there was no mention of 1619 Harrison parking lot.  Is keeping the parking lot clean 

and free of debris at 1619 Harrison part of the scope of services? 

Answer:  No. 
 

Question 13: Under Section 2.6 - Quarterly Services, the contractor must pressure wash or scrub the 
sidewalk and entrance areas in front of each building location. Will you define the entrance areas or more 

specifically, how far must the sidewalk be cleaned?  Are the city sidewalks included in the scope of 
services? 

Answer:  The Authority’s entry areas are defined as any walking surface in front of an Authority 

building, including sidewalks.  
 

Question 14:  At 1619 Harrison Street, the janitors currently have garbage taken out to the basement, 
loaded into the back of a pick- up truck, and someone else removes it from premises at the end of a 

cleaning day.   Will we continue with this procedure with loading garbage to that specified pick-up truck? 

Answer:  Yes. 
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Question 15:  At 1619 Harrison Street you have certain offices that will be locked such as, attorney’s 

offices.  Will we be cleaning those offices on certain dates when they are open? 
Answer:  Yes, on an as requested basis. 

 
Question 16:  At 1619 Harrison Street you have certain offices that will be locked. Will the tenant just 

leave garbage outside of office for us to clean? 

Answer:  Yes. 

 
Question 17:  At 1619 Harrison Street you have certain offices that will be locked.  Will we be provided 

a master key to maintain those offices cleaned and locked thereafter? 
Answer:  Keys will be provided to access areas to be cleaned on a daily basis. Other locked areas will be 

cleaned on an as requested basis. 

 
Question 18:  We read and discussed that sidewalk and entrance areas in front of certain buildings will 

have to be pressure washed or scrubbed on a quarterly basis.  Does this pertain to all buildings? 
Answer:  Yes.  Under Section 2.6 – Quarterly Services, the sidewalk and entrance areas in front of each 

building location must be pressure washed or scrubbed every three months. 
 

935 UNION STREET 
 
Question 19: For the second floor bathrooms for men and women at 935 Union Street, must hot water 

be poured down the drain? 
Answer:  Yes. 

 

Question 20:  The scope includes pressure washing of the exterior.  Please clarify.   
Answer:   In Section 2.8 – Annual Services, the Authority wants the exterior buildings of 935 Union 

Street and 1180 25th Avenue to be pressure washed annually during the month of May. 
 

 

1180 25TH AVENUE 
 
Question 21: Do we clean the police locker rooms (at 1180 25th Avenue)? 
Answer:  Yes, keys will be provided to access areas to be cleaned on a daily basis. Other locked areas 

will be cleaned on an as requested basis. 

 
Question 22:  At 1180 25th Avenue we have noted that the trailer needs to be cleaned as well.  We 

have noted that we will be responsible for vacuuming and maintaining the trailer detail cleaned. 
Answer:  Yes. 

 

Question 23:  Will keys be given to the contractor to access locked rooms? 
Answer:  Keys will be provided to access areas to be cleaned on a daily basis. Other locked areas will be 

cleaned on an as requested basis. 
 
 

1327 65TH AVENUE 
 

Question 24:  You mentioned that the vents located at 1327 65th Avenue restrooms will be added on 
the list for us to keep clean.   Will you be requesting all vents to be dusted cleaned, maintained at all 

restrooms in other buildings? 

Answer:   Yes. In Section 2.5 – Monthly Services, the selected vendor is to dust/clean exhaust fan 
covers on a monthly basis. 
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Prevailing Wage and Labor Requirements: 

 
Question 25:  Will certified payroll be required? 
Answer:  This janitorial services contract requires certified payroll records to be kept on file at the firm’s 

administrative offices. The Oakland Housing Authority’s labor compliance officer will examine the certified 
payroll records. 

 
Question 26:  How would the Authority distinguish between Building & Grounds Worker I and II?   

Answer:  The Building & Grounds Worker I position has less than three years of janitorial experience. 

The Building & Grounds Worker II position has three years or more janitorial experience. 
 

Question 27:  How will seniority be measured for the incumbents, at the start of their date of 
employment or upon commencement of the new contract? 

Answer:   Seniority will be measured for incumbent janitors based on the start of the date of 

employment. 
 

Question 28: Outside of the Oakland Housing Authority, are there other programs, like the HUD 

Maintenance Wage Rate, where employees can get a higher wage? 
Answer:   Please visit the following City of Oakland website link: 

http://www2.oaklandnet.com/Government/o/CityAdministration/d/CP/s/policies/index.htm 
 

Question 29:  Will you breakdown the cost of the fringe benefits ($13.64 and $14.86 for building & 

Grounds Worker I and II, respectively)? 
Answer: The Human Resources Department of the Oakland Housing Authority has a Memorandum of 

Understanding with Service Employees’ International Union, Local 1021. SEIU Local 21 establishes the 
individual fringe benefit dollar amounts for each benefit (e.g. vacation, medical, etc.) Please contact SEIU 

Local 1021 for further information. 
 

Question 30:  What does fringe benefit include? Is it non-mandatory while it says “(if any)” on HUD 

Maintenance Wage Rate Decision (HUD FORM 52158)? 
Answer:  Fringe benefits may include: 

1. Sick, vacation or holiday pay; 
2. Costs to defray expenses of apprenticeship or similar programs; 

3. Medical or hospital care; 

4. Supplemental unemployment benefits; 
5. Life Insurance; 

6. Pensions or retirement or death 
7. Compensation for injuries or illness resulting from occupational activity; 

8. Other bona fide fringe benefits; or  
9. Insurance to provide any of the above. 

 

Fringe benefits do not include employer contributions or payments required by other Federal, State or 
local law, such as FICA, workers’ compensation, or unemployment compensation. 

 
This janitorial services contract requires the employer to pay its worker the minimum amount of fringe 

benefit corresponding with the Building & Grounds Worker I and II job positions. 

 
Question 31:  HUD FORM 52158 expired on 6/30/14. Is there any new form? If so, please provide. 

Answer:  Until HUD provides the Oakland Housing Authority an updated and approved HUD Form 
52158, the existing HUD Form 52158 (expiration 06/30/2014) remains in effect. 
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Section 3: 

 

Question 32:  When openings are available, must the contractor come to the Authority first to look for 
personnel or employ any low-income Oakland residents?   

Answer:   The Oakland Housing Authority Economic Opportunity Policy and Section 3 guidelines require 
a contractor to notify the Oakland Housing Authority first when a contractor has a need for a new 

employee. 
 

Question 33:  If the Authority residents are not qualified for the job opening, must I interview city of 

Oakland residents or may I look outside of Oakland? 
Answer:  A contractor may hire anyone it deems qualified for the position. In order to receive Section 3 

credit, however, the new employee must be low income and live in the City of Oakland. 
 

Question 34:  As an employer, I am required to hire people who are legally in the United States.  Will 

that be an issue with Authority residents? 
Answer:  This janitorial services contract requires the winning firm to follow all local, state and federal 

employment laws and regulations. 
 

Question 35:  How does the California Displaced Janitor Opportunity Act affect this project with new 

hires? 
Answer:  This janitorial services contract requires the winning firm to follow all local, state and federal 

employment laws and regulations. 
 

Question 36:  May a resident receiving housing subsidies from another county/city be certified as a 
Section 3 business? 

Answer:  In order to be certified as a Section 3 business concern with the Oakland Housing Authority, 

Section 3 residents of the City of Oakland must comprise at least 51% of the firm’s workforce. 
 

 

Background Check: 

 

Question 37: Who absorbs the cost for the Department of Justice Criminal Identification Index (CII) 

check?  
Answer:  The selected vendor will be responsible for this cost. 

 
Question 38: How long does it take to process a back ground check? 

Answer:  The Authority is unable to project the length of time to process a background check for 
prospective employees of the selected vendor. 
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Bidder hereby acknowledges this addendum: 

 
 
Name of Firm:  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
Authorized Signature:  ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Date:  _______________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Acknowledgement of this Addendum must be included with your bid.  

 

 


